
 

 -1- 

 

 

SOUTH BROWARD DRAINAGE DISTRICT 

GOVERNING BOARD MEETING MINUTES 
 

MARCH 29, 2018 

 

Present:  

Scott Hodges, Chairperson Kevin M. Hart, District Director 

James Ryan, Vice Chairperson Reina Muniz, Recording Secretary 

Vicki Minnaugh, Treasurer  

Robert E. Goggin, IV, Secretary                                      

Douglas R. Bell, Legal Counsel 

General Public: See Attached List 

Alanna Mersinger, Commissioner  

Mercedes Santana-Woodall, Commissioner  

  

Absent: 

 

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------ 

 

01.   CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL/PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

 

   Chair Hodges called the SBDD Board Meeting to order at 8:03 a.m.; with Vice Chair Ryan, 

Commissioner Minnaugh, Commissioner Mersinger, Commissioner Goggin, and Commissioner 

Santana-Woodall present at the meeting; followed by the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

02.   PUBLIC COMMENT  

 

Mr. Tom Good shared some of his thoughts regarding the time he served as a Commissioner on the 

SBDD Board.  He reminisced on years back while being a Board member with SBDD, and even 

before he became a board member, when he had interactions with the SBDD.  He recalls many 

challenges that were presented to this Board; and how there were some new faces that came onto this 

Board of Commissioners; and there was also a new Executive Director, Mr. Kevin Hart.  He said that 

when they were going through the selection of the Executive Director, that District Director Hart was 

not his first choice; but that District Director Hart rose to the top; and he was chosen as the Executive 

Director; and that after all these years of getting to know District Director Hart professionally and 

personally, this job was meant for District Director Hart.  He said that he doesn’t know of anyone that 

is more honest, has a greater intellectual capacity to manage the diversity or the issues that face this 

Board, or the integrity to represent this District.  He said he has incredible respect for District Director 

Hart; and he is very happy that he is here, and is hopeful that he chooses to continue and complete his 

work career here with SBDD, because we will be served very well. 

 

Going back to his reflection, he said that he found that SBDD has had a lot of integration; and that 

there was this newness, but it was merged with experience.  He said today, the District is financially 

solid, operationally effective, and that this District enjoys incredible credibility throughout the County 

and the State, and that’s because they all led this, and made this happen; and he applauds them for 

that.  

 

Finally, he commented that in all the years that he had been with SBDD, and working with the Board 

members, that each and every one of the Board members has a unique way of looking at this world 

differently, and approaching problems.  He thanked the Board members for the challenges and 



 

 -2- 

 

guidance they gave him; and the fact that they prepared him for his future that he is about to face.  He 

thanked them and gave them all his respect and love.      

 

Mr. Woody Fisher, resident of Hollybrook, presented a brief description of his credentials to the Board 

for consideration to fill in the vacant seat on the Board.  He said that upon retirement from the 

computer industry, he helped the public in various roles; he did constituent services as a legislative 

aide for a state representative; and he served as President of the St. Vincent’s de Paul Society at St. 

Louis Catholic Church, helping the needy for 10 years; and he is currently on the Board of Director’s 

at Hollybrook Golf & Tennis helping to serve his Hollybrook neighbors.  

 

Mr. Jack McClusky, stated that he was present before the Board to solicit the Board’s support for the 

vacancy that was created by Mr. Tom Good’s election.  He commented that his resume is rather 

lengthy, and that he has served in just about every capacity that the City of Pembroke Pines has to 

offer.  He has been a Commissioner in the City for a total of 8 years; and he served on the SBDD 

Board of Commissioners for 8 years as well.  He said that he started out about 48 years ago with the 

Pembroke Pines JCs and he is presently the city’s historian. 

 

03.   APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the minutes of the February 22, 2018, South Broward 

Drainage District Board meeting.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin and it was carried 

unanimously. 

 

04. DIRECTOR=S REPORT  

 

A. PROCLAMATION FOR APRIL AS WATER CONSERVATION MONTH 

 

Chair Hodges read a Proclamation from SBDD, declaring the month of April as “Water 

Conservation Month”. 

 

B. RELEASE AND VACATION REQUEST OF SURFACE WATER MANAGEMENT 

AREA (SWMA) DESIGNATION FOR SALVAT RESIDENCE; SUBJECT TO THE 

DEDICATION OF A NEW SWMA 

 

District Director Hart said that the owner of the property located at 4831 S.W. 201st Terrace, 

Southwest Ranches, FL 33332 requested that SBDD vacate the Surface Water Management 

Area (SWMA) that was previously designated and recorded under Instrument No. 113552560, 

Broward County Records.  All properties in the SW Ranches are required to set aside 20% of 

their property at elevation 5.0’ (or an equivalent storage area) as a SWMA. 

 

The property owners, Orlando & Cindy Salvat, will dedicate a new SWMA over his property 

to comply with the 20% SWMA requirement.  SBDD staff has reviewed the request and has 

no objections. 

 

There are no financial impacts to this Agenda Item, other than SBDD administrative costs; all 

other costs will be incurred by the property owner. 

 

The request is for SBDD to vacate and release its interest of the Surface Water Management 

Area on the property located at 4831 SW 201st Terrace, Southwest Ranches, FL 33332, as 



 

 -3- 

 

described in the attached “Release and Vacation of Surface Water Management Area 

Designation” and recorded under Instrument No. 113552560, B.C.R.; subject to the dedication 

of a new Surface Water Management Area in accordance with SBDD Criteria.   

 

Commissioner Goggin moved for approval of the Release & Vacation of SWMA designated 

for the Salvat residence as submitted.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner Santana-

Woodall. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh had concerns with why the property owner would go through so much 

trouble on a release and vacation for such a minor change from 2016. District Director Hart 

replied that he does not know the specifics except that most likely they are performing some 

kind of improvement on their property, where they now need to encroach into the SWMA. 

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously.  

 

C. CONTRACT AWARD(S): 

 

1.   SBDD STORMWATER CULVERT SLIP-LINING PROJECT IN PEMBROKE PINES 

 

District Director Hart stated that SBDD advertised for bids for the SBDD Stormwater Culvert 

Slip-lining Project in Pembroke Pines.   SBDD received two (2) bids ranging in price from 

$39,244.78 to $53,732.52.  

 

The lowest bid was submitted by Shenandoah Construction Company (Shenandoah) in the total 

amount of $39,244.78.  SBDD has reviewed the bid submitted by Shenandoah and has 

determined that the bid is complete and meets all requirements, and that the Contractor is 

qualified to perform the work.  In addition, SBDD has been satisfied with previous work 

performed by Shenandoah.   

 

District Director Hart recommended that the bid for the SBDD Culvert Slip-Lining Project in 

Pembroke Pines be awarded to Shenandoah Construction Company in the total amount of 

$39,244.78 as the lowest responsive, responsible bidder. 

 

The work covered under this project is included as part of the District’s 2017-2018 budget; and 

funding for the project will come from the SBDD General Operating account. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval to award the SBDD Culvert Slip-Lining Project 

as recommended by the District Director to Shenandoah Construction Company, in the total 

amount of $39,244.78.   Motion was seconded by Commissioner Goggin. 

 

Chair Hodges asked District Director Hart to give a brief description for those not familiar with 

what slip-lining is, where it is located, and what the benefits are.  District Director Hart provided 

a description of the process and the location for this specific project. 

 

The question was called and it was carried unanimously. 

 

2.   SBDD FABRIC-FORMED EROSION PROTECTION PROJECT IN MIRAMAR 

 

District Director Hart stated that SBDD advertised for bids for the SBDD Fabric-formed 



 

 -4- 

 

Erosion Protection Project in Miramar.   SBDD received five (5) bids ranging in price from 

$15,241.75 to $28,900.00.  

 

The lowest bid was submitted by Ferreira Construction Southern Division Company (Ferreira) 

in the total amount of $15,241.75.  SBDD has reviewed the bid submitted by Ferreira and has 

determined that the bid is complete and meets all requirements, and that the Contractor is 

qualified to perform the work.  In addition, SBDD received positive responses to reference 

checks on Ferreira.   

 

District Director Hart recommended that the bid for the SBDD Fabric-Formed Erosion 

Protection Project in Miramar be awarded to Ferreira Construction Southern Division 

Company in the total amount of $15,241.75 as the lowest responsive, responsible bidder.   

 

District Director Hart added that this project is located on the upstream side of the District’s 

S-3 pump station and it is going to actually extend across the entire frontage of the pump 

station.  This was a project identified after the debriefing on Hurricane Irma; it is going to 

significantly improve the flow through the District’s sluice gates.  Right now there is no lining 

on that channel; it’s basically, just a regular canal bottom; and during Irma the vegetation had 

accumulated and grown on the bottom of that channel, and it was restricting flow.  This was 

an area that the District wanted to improve.   

 

The work covered under this project is included as part of the District’s 2017-2018 budget; and 

funding for the project will come from the SBDD General Operating account.   

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval to award SBDD Fabric-Formed Erosion 

Protection Project as recommended by the District Director to Ferreira Construction Southern 

Division Company, in the total amount of $15,241.75.   Motion was seconded by Commissioner 

Goggin and it was carried unanimously. 

 

D. REQUEST BY DISTRICT DIRECTOR FOR APPROVAL TO ATTEND A 3-DAY 

WORKSHOP ON BUILDING RESILIENT COMMUNITIES ON APRIL 16-18 IN 

PITTSBURG, PA 

 

District Director Hart asked the Board for approval to attend a 3-day workshop on Building 

Resilient Communities.  The workshop is sponsored by the Institute for Sustainable 

Communities (IFSC) and will explore innovative approaches to building resilient communities.  

It will include teams from 8-12 communities across the country who will participate in clinics, 

panel discussions, and small-group working sessions to discuss strategies and develop solutions.  

SBDD was asked to participate in the workshop by the City of Miramar who submitted the 

application to the IFSC.  SBDD will be part of the working group that includes representatives 

from the City of Miramar, Broward County, and Feeding South Florida Food Bank. 

 

The cost of this workshop will be approximately $800 which will be funded through the 

District’s 2017-2018 budget, and will come from the SBDD General Operating account. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval for SBDD District Director Hart to attend a 3-

day workshop on Building Resilient Communities in Pittsburg, PA.  Motion was seconded by 

Commissioner Santana-Woodall and it was carried unanimously. 

 



 

 -5- 

 

E. OTHER 

 

 District Director Hart updated the Board on the following items: 

 

 FL Gas Transmission Company Project – This month District Director Hart met with 

representatives from the Florida Gas Transmission Company; and he wanted to keep the 

Board apprised of the meeting and the proposed project.  He said that the proposed gas 

line may run right through the middle of our District.  The project is to relocate an 18” 

natural gas steel pipeline that currently runs along the Florida Turnpike; and D.O.T. wants 

to widen the turnpike; and in order to widen it, they need to relocate the gas main.  He 

said the proposed alignment is right down the FP&L easement that bisects the District at 

Palm Avenue through City Hall and Pembroke Pines.  They will most likely have to do 

an agreement with the District since they will be crossing a number of SBDD’s canals.  In 

fact, they have expressed an interest in giving the Board an overview of the proposed 

project.   

 

  Commissioner Mersinger asked if they were aware that they are putting this gas line very 

close to the White Rock quarry.  Chair Hodges replied to keep in mind that they do not 

want to relocate, that D.O.T. and the turnpike are forcing them to; and it is still up for 

debate.  He said that right now they are just doing their homework to figure out if they 

have to relocate, and how they’re going to do it.  

 

  District Director Hart added that FL Gas Transmission Company is in discussions with 

the state as to who is going to pay for this, and how it will be funded.  Commissioner 

Santana-Woodall commented that we have to make sure that we let people know about 

this; because at one time there was a gas leak from a pipe that broke; and there were many 

people upset about it. 

 

 Update on the community meeting at Sunset Lakes – The District was asked by the 

Sunset Lakes management company to attend a meeting and talk to some of the Board 

members and residents.  Commissioner Mersinger and District Director Hart attended 

the meeting and spoke to those present.  District Director Hart said that it was a positive 

meeting.  He said that Commissioner Mersinger covered many of the points in regard to 

their concerns on erosion, and what was done after hurricane Wilma, and now with 

hurricane Irma.  District Director Hart said that he did a follow-up, and sent them 

information they had requested, and that he hasn’t heard anything since. 

 

Commissioner Mersinger commented that she hasn’t received any calls or seen anything 

more from the “next door neighbors”, where some of the residents posted their 

complaints.  She said that one of the things that came out of this meeting was that they 

now understand that SBDD does not maintain what was done; that it was done as a favor.  

She said that the only thing SBDD gave them was their expertise.  She commented that 

SBDD is looking into possibly getting them a grant to do some work; and they are also 

looking into maybe getting their community to pay for it.  She said that she is more than 

happy to go with them, as we move into the next legislation session, to try and get some 

money for a local project.  We said that it was quite clear that it wasn’t within our purview 

to do this work, nor did we have the funding to do it.  She felt that everyone was heard 

and they left content.   

 



 

 -6- 

 

 Legislation – District Director Hart stated that there were no bills that had impacts on 

Special Districts or SBDD.  There are still bills that may come back next year; and he 

will be keeping an eye on it. 

 

 Maintenance Building – SBDD has received all of the building finals, (electrical, roof, 

mechanical, etc.).  He said that once SBDD moves into the building, he will put together 

an event. 

 

 Cinemark Conversations – District Director Hart has had continuing conversations 

with Cinemark to purchase surplus land.  He expects to bring this forward to the Board 

for review and discussion in April.  He is working with Cinemark so that they may submit 

their formal offer to purchase the surplus land by that time.   

 

 Calusa Corners, Dykes Road Drainage Project – District Director Hart commented 

that this is the project where SBDD is working with the Town of SWR on a cooperative 

grant with SFWMD.  He said that SBDD did the design in-house and it’s gone out to bid 

twice, and the bids came in very high; and they went out to bid one more time, and the 

bids came in within the budget.  He said that it was going to the Town of SWR Council 

for approval.  It is the Town of SWR’s project, and SBDD is just cost-sharing on it.     

 

 Grapple Truck - SBDD is still working on getting pricing and making a final decision 

on a second grapple truck.   

 

 Audit Committee – District Director Hart said that for next month, SBDD needs to 

establish an Audit Committee to request proposals for professional services for the 

annual audit.  SBDD’s contract from the previous selection has expired; and under 

statute, the District has to go back out for RFP.   

 

 Updates on Rainfall – Chair Hodges asked District Director Hart to give the Board an 

update on the lack of rain, drought, etc.  District Director Hart said that at the last Water 

Advisory Committee meeting they gave a report and that we are below average on 

rainfall now for the dry season; but because we were above average last year for rain, 

Lake Okeechobee, which is our barometer, is still at a higher level than it was last year 

at this time, and so we are not in a drought, but that was three weeks ago.  He has not 

been told that we are in any kind of a drought situation, but as always at this time of year, 

the levels have really dropped.  He said that right now we are about 8” to 1’ below control 

elevation.   

 

05. ATTORNEY=S REPORT: 

  

 Attorney Bell commented that he is a member of the Broward County Water Advisory Board to the 

Broward County Commission of which he was appointed by the Surface Water Management 

Coordination Committee; and as a member he is supposed to appoint an alternate who is also an elected 

Drainage District Board Member; and he wanted to know if anyone was interested.  He said they meet 

every other Friday at the Broward County Government Center from 10 to noon. 

 

 Attorney Bell discussed the options the Board has regarding the vacant seat on the SBDD Board.  He 

said that they can appoint someone today, or at the next meeting, or they can advertise for anyone who 



 

 -7- 

 

may be interested in the position.  

 

 In discussion, Chair Hodges asked if the Board decides to advertise for applicants what is the time line 

for doing that.  Attorney Bell replied that it’s flexible; it’s at the Board’s discretion.  He said you may 

want to advertise a week or two ahead of time.  The other option is waiting until the next election in 

November. 

 

 Chair Hodges asked the Board if they wanted to leave it for the next Board meeting, and place it on the 

Agenda, and suggest nominations; or advertise to the public for anyone that may be interested; or wait 

until the next election.  

 

 Vice Chair Ryan commented that SBDD has two wonderful candidates.  One who has vast experience, 

not only with a municipality, but he also has experience as a Board member to SBDD.  He said that 

even if the Board advertises, we will not get anyone with the experience and knowledge that Mr. 

McClusky has, and he would have no problem appointing Jack McClusky to Tom Good’s seat. 

 

 Commissioner Goggin suggested that we utilize people that have come forth, and place it on the agenda 

for next month. 

 

 Commissioner Santana-Woodall commented that she would also like to wait until the next board 

meeting.   

 

 Commissioner Mersinger commented that even if we do this next month, we still have time within the 

next month to advertise for anyone else who wants to fill the seat.  She said that she doesn’t see why it 

can’t be done in conjunction with voting on it next month.  She said she would like to be as transparent 

as possible.   

 

 Commissioner Minnaugh said that as she keeps going to these meeting, she keeps hearing the word 

“transparency”.  A part of her says that we should advertise, so that way, it can’t be said that SBDD did 

not attempt to notify the public or its constituents; and if the Board get candidates that’s fine, and if not, 

that’s fine too; but at least SBDD has done their due diligence.  Commissioner Goggin agreed with 

Commissioner Minnaugh regarding transparency.  Chair Hodges also commented that this is a big 

decision; and although they have two fine candidates this morning, they should not take it lightly or 

rush into it, because it’s a big decision.  Commissioner Minnaugh commented that everyone presumes 

that anyone in government or decision making; makes these decisions without anyone knowing about 

it.  Commissioner Mersinger said that it may not change the outcome one iota, but you should at least 

make the attempt to do it properly. 

 

 Vice Chair Ryan commented that he thinks that is an exercise in futility; that in all the years he’s been 

on this Board, the attendance at these meeting has been dismal.  He doesn’t believe that they will get 

any other candidates, and that he is ready to make a motion. 

 

 Vice Chair Ryan made a motion to nominate Jack McClusky to be appointed to Tom Good’s seat as 



 

 -8- 

 

Zone 6 Commissioner.  Commissioner Goggin seconded the motion. 

 

 Commissioner Mersinger asked if they vote this motion down does it stop the process.  Attorney Bell 

replied no.  She said all she wants to do is to be transparent so no one comes back and says we did this 

in a vacuum.  If she votes no on this motion, does it still allow us to move forward, and have Mr. 

McClusky still be in the mix.  Attorney Bell and Chair Hodges replied absolutely.   

 

 Vice Chair Ryan commented that he believes in transparency also, and the mere fact that we have a 

meeting every month, same time, same place, and the attendance we get at these meetings are non-

existing; we can’t be any more transparent than we are right now.  He said if someone is interested in 

this Board they would show up to this meeting and find out what we do and take some interest in it.  He 

feels that this is a delay in the appointment of a very qualified individual, and he feels they should go 

ahead with it. 

 

 Commissioner Minnaugh said that the transparency part is the fact that we have the meeting; we are not 

telling people don’t come, but if someone wants to come we are transparent every month.  The last 

Thursday of every month we are here from 8am to maybe 9:30 -10am.  We advertise the meeting and 

everyone knows about it.  The fact that they are not here does not mean that they don’t care.  We just 

haven’t pushed their button, or they don’t need anything from us.  It’s the same thing as when we do 

bids for culvert work.  As long as Mr. McClusky can still stay in the mix, and we can do this when we 

are comfortable with it, that’s all that she needs to be assured of. 

 

The question to appoint Jack McClusky as the Zone 6 Commissioner for the vacant seat was called, 

and the motion failed by a 5-1 vote (with Vice Chair Ryan voting in favor of the motion). 

 

The direction of the Board is to place a 1/8 page ad in the paper, and on the SBDD website, and place 

this item on next month’s agenda. 
 

06.   APPROVAL OF LEGAL BILLS      

  

 Commissioner Minnaugh moved for approval of the legal bills.  Motion was seconded by Commissioner 

Santana-Woodall and it was carried unanimously. 

 

07.   BOARD MEMBERS QUESTIONS/COMMENTS 

 

Vice Chair Ryan asked District Director Hart if he had any idea what the District’s cost will be for the 

joint project that SBDD has with the Town of SWR.  District Director Hart replied yes; the cost-share 

is $50,000, and that this project is in the District’s CIP which has been approved for this fiscal year.  In 

addition to that, SBDD performed the design and permitting for the project.  He said that the total cost 

for the project will be over $400,000.  He said that the biggest benefit to the project is that SBDD 

modified that sluice gate at Griffin Road that’s connecting the Ivanhoe lake to the C-11 Canal.  The 

concrete weir was replaced with a sluice gate and it can now be lowered and that will be a huge benefit. 

 

Vice Chair Ryan asked what will SWR contribute towards this.  District Director replied whatever the 

difference will be from the amount of the grant.  He said their cost-share was higher than SBDD; it was 



 

 -9- 

 

over $100,000. The Town received another grant from the state for $500,000 for drainage improvements 

for the Green Meadows area.   

 

Commissioner Mersinger commented that she would like SBDD to do more grants for some of the 

bigger projects.  District Director Hart said that the City of Pembroke Pines contacted him for projects 

to be submitted as a joint project through the local mitigation improvement grant through the state as 

well; and he submitted four projects to the city, and he hopes they submit that to the state for SBDD.  

He added both of the secondary pump stations and some other slip-lining projects. 

 

Commissioner Minnaugh asked District Director Hart if SBDD has easements in the Green Meadows 

area.  District Director Hart replied, some.  He said SBDD will be having a planning meeting with the 

Town.  Commissioner Minnaugh also asked if they asked SBDD for a cost-share.  District Director Hart 

said no.   

 

Commissioner Santana-Woodall invited the Board to the Relay for Life Race on April 13th, 2018 at 6:00 

p.m and goes on the next morning until 9:00 a.m.  She said they will have some great events this year.   

 

08. MEETING DATE(S) 

 

A. NEXT REGULAR BOARD MEETING WILL BE HELD ON THURSDAY, APRIL 26th, 2018 

AT 8:00 A.M. 

 

Adjournment at 9:12 A.M.  

 

Respectfully submitted,  

  

                                                                            

Robert E. Goggin IV, Secretary 

South Broward Drainage District 

 

/rim 




















































































































